

### NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

### MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY 11 JANUARY 2022

**Present:** Cllrs Sherry Jespersen (Chairman), Mary Penfold (Vice-Chairman), Jon Andrews, Tim Cook, Les Fry, Matthew Hall, Brian Heatley, Carole Jones, Stella Jones, Emma Parker, Val Pothecary and Belinda Ridout

Also present: Cllr Molly Rennie and Cllr David Walsh

### Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):

Hannah Smith (Planning Area Manager), Philip Crowther (Legal Business Partner - Regulatory), Anna Lee (Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement), Steve Savage (Transport Development Manager), Ross Cahalane (Lead Project Officer), Nicola Holdsworth (Technical Support Officer), Jennie Roberts (Senior Planning Officer), Simon Sharp (Senior Planning Officer), Huw Williams (Lead Project Officer - Corporate Projects) and George Dare (Democratic Services Officer)

### 41. Apologies

An apology for absence was received from Cllr Pothecary for the afternoon part of the meeting.

### 42. **Declarations of Interest**

No declarations of disclosable interests were made at the meeting.

### 43. **Public Participation**

Representations by the public to the Committee on individual planning applications are detailed below. There were no questions, petitions or deputations received on other items on this occasion.

### 44. **Planning Applications**

Members considered written reports submitted on planning applications as set out below.

### 45. P/FUL//2020/00052 - Grove Farm, Chaffeymoor Hill, Bourton

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application to erect Yoga Studio with attached deck and sauna facilities, use of existing on-site parking and

turning to serve the proposed use, improvements to the access onto Chaffeymoor Hill and change of use Grove Farm from C3 to C1 use to provide B&B accommodation for not more than 20 persons in connection with the proposed use.

Committee members were shown the location of the site which is next to a listed building and various photographs of the site. The officer's presentation included details on the access to the site, proposed new hedgerow, plans for the change of use to provide B&B accommodation, 3D visuals of the proposed yoga studio, and the proposed elevations. The Senior Planning Officer referred to Policies 2, 6, and 12 of the Neighbourhood Plan.

The Transport Development Manager outlined the access to the site. Visibility splays would be created by removing some trees and hedgerow, leaving an ash tree as it would not impact on safety. There would be low traffic movement which would not affect safety.

The Technical Support Officer read the representations which are attached as an annexure to these minutes.

### Members' Questions and Comments

Members asked questions of the Senior Planning Officer and Transport Development Manager in relation to the application. The officers responded to the questions and advised that:

- It was necessary for the Highway Authority to make changes to the access to ensure it was safe.
- The amount of parking on the site was considered appropriate.
- There were conditions limiting noise and number of people on the site.
- There would be an increase in traffic, but it would be acceptable with the improved access.
- The sedum roof on the studio would have the appropriate conditions for it to thrive.
- If the site was sold, then the Planning Authority would need to check to see if a material change of use of the yoga studio had occurred.
- Condition 4 did not allow amplified music to be played on the site.
- A licence for the sale of alcohol needed to be dealt with by the Licencing Authority.

Members debated the application. Points of discussion included: neighbouring amenity; the use of the veranda; adding further conditions to the application; the improved visibility of the access; and playing music on the site.

Proposed by Cllr Les Fry, seconded by Cllr Jon Andrews.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, made the following decision under delegated authority: that the application be granted, subject to conditions. Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

# 46. P/FUL/2021/01429 - Land at E 387256 N 123908, Wincombe Lane, Shaftesbury

The Lead Project Officer introduced the application to erect 162 No. dwellings, form vehicular access, parking, landscaping, open space and carry out ancillary works.

The Lead Project Officer presented his report to Members. The Committee was shown the location of the site, which is near an AONB, and various photographs of the site from different views. In 2016 an application was approved for 191 dwellings on the site; however, this current proposal was for 162 dwellings on the site, the main differences were highlighted to members, which included increased affordable housing. Members' attention was drawn to elevations of street scenes and dwellings, and the proposed landscaping, which showed the proposed appearance of the development. The recommendation was to grant planning permission.

The Technical Support Officer read the representations which are attached as an annexure to these minutes. The Lead Project Officer responded to the representations with some points of clarification.

### Members' Questions and Comments

Members asked several questions which related to the application. Officers responded to the questions and confirmed that:

- Refuse collection vehicles turning on the development had been catered for.
- No renewables had been put forward by the applicant.
- There was less traffic predicted compared to an application for this site in 2016. The reduced traffic movement was considered acceptable.
- The site is near an AONB but not within it.
- Condition 4 was a proposed lighting condition.
- There should be 30% affordable housing due to the development being an extension of the settlement of Shaftesbury.
- The building materials secured by condition 3 should include some Shaftesbury Stone.
- Blinds in windows would be difficult to condition.
- It is not reasonable to enforce domestic lighting levels.
- A condition could be added for the applicant to provide further information about sustainability, prior to construction.

At 13.14 the meeting was adjourned until 14.00. Upon reconvening a vote was taken to extend the meeting as the duration was longer than 3 hours. Proposed by Cllr Mary Penfold and seconded by Cllr Jon Andrews. The vote was carried.

It was the view of the committee that Shaftesbury Stone was included in the building materials, and they did not expect it to be reduced, as Shaftesbury was famous for its stone. The committee also did not wish to see render introduced at a later date.

Proposed by Cllr Les Fry, seconded by Cllr Jon Andrews.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions and an additional Sustainability Statement condition.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, made the following decision under delegated authority: that the application be granted, subject to conditions and an additional Sustainability Statement condition.

# Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

### Sustainability Statement Condition:

Prior to the commencement of the development above damp course level, a Sustainability Statement shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing. The statement shall include details of the proposed renewable technology measures. The construction of the dwellings shall fully accord with the approved statement.

Reason: to ensure that the development includes sustainably measures.

# 47. P/FUL/2021/03534 - Cheselbourne Village School, Drakes Lane, Cheselbourne

The Lead Project Officer – Corporate Projects introduced the application for the installation of roof mounted solar photovoltaics (PV) equipment and associated infrastructure. The committee were shown the location and photographs of the site, as well as various plans for the proposal.

The main planning issues were highlighted:

- The acceptability in principle of the proposed development
- Impact on amenity and biodiversity
- Impact on character and appearance of the locality and setting and heritage significance of Campion Cottage.

There were no representations for this application.

### Members' Questions and Comments

There were no questions or comments from members.

Proposed by Cllr Stella Jones, seconded by Cllr Les Fry.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, made the following decision under delegated authority: that the application be granted, subject to conditions.

Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

### 48. P/FUL/2021/03872 - Cerne Abbas Church of England First School, Duck Street, Cerne Abbas

The Lead Project Officer – Corporate Projects outlined the application for the installation of roof mounted solar photovoltaic (PV) panels and associated infrastructure. The site was located within the Cerne Abbas Conservation Area and the school and adjacent buildings were not listed buildings, but they were non-designated heritage assets. The Committee was shown the proposals for the solar photovoltaic panels, which would be placed symmetrically on the westward and eastward facing roof planes, as well as various photographs of the school. If permission was granted, Condition 3 would prevent solar panels being installed on the eastward facing roof plane in the interest of preserving the Cerne Abbas Conservation Area.

The Technical Support Officer read the representations which are attached as an annexure to these minutes.

### Members' Questions and Comments

Members asked questions in relation to the reduction of the solar panels and harm that would be caused to heritage. Officers responded to the questions and advised that:

- There was a statutory duty to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and appearance of the conservation area and to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the setting of listed buildings.
- The Conservation officer did not consider it acceptable to have solar panels on the eastward facing roof plane.
- All solar panels were in the proposal, but condition 3 would prevent the installation of some.
- The school is located within a designated Conservation Area.
- Harm to the heritage significance of designated heritage assets should be given great weight.

Members made comments on the application which included being minded to support the officer's recommendation, as well weighing the harm against public benefits.

Proposed by Cllr Belinda Ridout that the application be granted, however there was no seconder for this proposal.

Proposed by Cllr Brian Heatley, seconded by Cllr Tim Cook that the application be granted without Condition 3.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions, and excluding Condition 3.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, the less than substantial harm to the heritage significance of designated and non-designated heritage assets and to the public benefits associated with the proposed development, confirmed that planning permission would be granted, subject to conditions, excluding condition 3.

Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

### 49. P/FUL/2021/04519 - Stickland's CE VA Primary School, Evershot

The Lead Project Officer – Corporate Projects introduced the application to install roof mounted solar photovoltaic (PV) panels, 2 No. wall mounted air source heat pumps and associated infrastructure. The Committee were shown the site's location which was within the designated Evershot Conservation Area and near to listed buildings. Great weight had to be given to any harm to the heritage significance of designated heritage assets when considering the application and the harm should be weighed against the public benefits. Condition 3 would prevent some solar PV panels being installed on the southwest-ward and the southeast-ward facing roof planes of the original school building in the interest of preserving the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and to limit harm to heritage significance.

The Technical Support Officer read a representation which is attached as an annexure to these minutes.

### Members' Questions and Comments

There were no questions from members. Members agreed that some solar PV panels would impact on the conservation area.

Proposed by Cllr Mary Penfold, seconded by Cllr Belinda Ridout.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, made the following decision under delegated authority: that the application be granted, subject to conditions. Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

### 50. P/HOU/2021/04457 - 6 Culliford Road, Dorchester

The Area Manager introduced the application for the erection of a rear flat roof extension. The application was before the committee as the applicant was a Dorset Council employee in the Planning Department. The committee were shown the location of the site, photographs of the site, and the proposed elevations and floor plans. The main issued related to the application were outlined.

There were no representations for this application.

### Members' Questions and Comments

Cllr Hall asked if one of the paragraphs from the NPPF listed in the report was a correct reason for approval because it related to the provision of housing. The Area Manager confirmed it was not correct because this application did not provide housing.

Proposed by Cllr Stella Jones, seconded by Cllr Carole Jones.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, made the following decision under delegated authority: that the application be granted, subject to conditions.

Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

# 51. WD/D/20/003114 - Sandringham Sports Centre, Armada Way, Dorchester

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application for the erection of a single storey dance school with mezzanine and pitched roof. The Senior Planning Officer outlined the site location, proposed elevations, and proposed plans. There were no other alternative or suitable sites in Dorchester for this application. The proposed drainage strategy was highlighted. Members were shown various photographs of the site and where other clubs were located on the site. Dorchester Town Council had agreed to relocate the petanque court.

The key planning matters were highlighted:

- Principle of development
- Visual amenity
- Residential amenity

- Access and parking
- Flooding
- Other: included Dorchester Petanque Club; Dorchester Rifle & Pistol Club; Motorcycle school; Ownership issues raised by Dorchester Bowls Club; and renewable energy.

The Technical Support Officer read the representations which were received in relation to the application. The representations are attached as an annexure to these minutes.

### Cllr Molly Rennie – Ward Member

The Ward Member for Dorchester East submitted a statement for this application. Cllr Rennie expressed her support for the application and addressed issues which included flooding and parking.

### Members' Questions and Comments

Members asked several questions of the Senior Planning Officer. In response to the questions, it was confirmed that:

- The building colour could not be changed as it was a significant change to the application.
- Landscaping would take up more car parking spaces which was a concern.
- A soft landscaping condition could be explored for planters or climbing plants.
- Dorchester Town Council owns the car park.
- It was not in the scope of the application to add signage on Armada Way to warn drivers of pedestrians or cyclists.
- It would be an anomaly in planning terms to restrict usage times of this club, but not other clubs on the site.
- The correct notices had been served for the application.

Proposed by Cllr Belinda Ridout, seconded by Cllr Les Fry.

The proposer and seconder did not wish to include a soft landscaping condition and suggested the ward member could explore climbing plants with the applicant.

The Committee were 'minded to' grant the application, subject to conditions.

The Service Manager for Development Management and Enforcement, having considered the representations and the officer's presentation and having taken into account the views of the committee, made the following decision under delegated authority: that the application be granted, subject to conditions.

Decision: That the application be granted, subject to the conditions outlined in the appendix attached to these minutes.

### 52. Urgent items

There were no urgent items.

# 53. Exempt Business

There was no exempt business.

Duration of meeting: 10.00 am - 4.41 pm

Chairman

.....

This page is intentionally left blank

# Minute Item 44

# Planning Committee – Update Sheet

Application Bof	Address	Agondo rof	Paga no	
Application Ref. P/FUL/2021/01429	Land at Wincombe Lane,	Agenda ref. 4b	Page no. 27 - 72	
	Shaftesbury			
Update 1:				
Officers recommend that an additional item is added to the legal agreement heads of terms, and that this requirement is contained within the S.106 Agreement, as follows:				
• The requirement for a scheme to be submitted that would provide for a link to the footpath network in the north of the site. There would be a requirement for the applicant to make a connection to the footpath network.				
This requirement would ensure that the development achieves sufficient pedestrian links and permeability through the site.				
The layout provides the opportunity to form a link, and the obligation within the S.106 Agreement would make it a requirement:				
Footpath Links				
Please note the following in respect of the Exception Test:				
flood risk area, but s	ed dwelling footprints are within a hig ome dwellings towards the north are e NPPF states that the need for the	e sited in areas	at low risk.	

the potential vulnerability of the site and of the development proposed, in line with the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification set out in national planning guidance.

The proposed dwellings are classified as "More vulnerable" development for the purposes of the Flood Risk Vulnerability Classification, which advises that such development would only require the Exception Test if within Flood Zone 3. As such, it is considered that the Exception Test is not required. Surface water and drainage issues are addressed in Pages 61-62 of the Committee Report.

Application Ref.	Address	Agenda ref.	Page no.
WD/D/20/003114	Sandringham Sports Centre,	4c	73 - 84
	Armada Way, Dorchester		

Update 3:

Please note the recommendation to include an archaeology condition, as requested by the Council's Senior Archaeologist:

No works shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant to, and approved by the Planning Authority. This scheme shall cover archaeological fieldwork together with post-excavation work and publication of the results.

Reason: To safeguard and/or record the archaeological interest on and around the site.

# Northern Area Planning Committee Written Submissions 11 January 2021

# Item 4a – P/FUL/2020/00052 – Grove Farm, Chaffeymoor Hill, Bourton

## Peter Diggens – Against the application

As an immediate neighbour of Grove Farm, I OBJECT strongly to this application, which is for a large commercial development in the garden of Grove Farm, currently a residential property in a quiet rural lane. The lane has no pavements and is a popular route for dog walkers, families with pushchairs and horse-riders as it forms the western end of a circular loop around the village.

In paragraph 13 of this report, Planning Principles are set out. I quote from these below with my additional comments *in italics* 

13.2 "...promote leisure developments... where identified needs are not met by existing rural service centres".

No needs have been identified in this application. Pilates, Yoga, Thai Chi etc are all already provided in Bourton Village Hall and elsewhere within Bourton village.

13.3 "Policy 20 ...that development outside defined settlement boundaries will **only** be permitted if it is of a type appropriate in the countryside or it can be demonstrated there is an 'overriding need' for it to be located in the countryside."

There is absolutely no "overriding need" for a wellness resort to be built in this rural location.

13.4 "However, there is no overriding need for it to be located in the countryside."

### These are the words of the planning officer!

13.5 "....Policy 11 of the Local Plan states that economic development will be supported in the countryside by enabling rural communities to plan to meet their own local needs, particularly through neighbourhood planning."

As is evident from Bourton Parish Council's statement, this development contravenes a number of Bourton Neighbourhood Plan policies. Furthermore, Bourton PC members have studied this application and are unanimously opposed to it, especially as there is absolutely no 'need' for it.

13.7 "Policy 12 ......will be supported provided they would contribute to the character and vitality of the local area, protect residential amenity, do not adversely impact upon road safety and conform to the environmental and other policies in this plan."

This application directly contravenes all of the principles of policy 12 of Bourton's Adopted Neighbourhood Plan.

13.8 "....while no specific local need is identified there is no reason to assume clients would not come from the local area...."

If this were true, why is there a need for a 20 person B&B?

13.10 The proposal is considered to be acceptable in principle.

I would strongly suggest that the proposal is contrary to all of the principles against which it is being tested.

Bourton Parish Council and every neighbour in Chaffeymoor Hill objects to this application. I would urge the committee to reject it as a commercial development of this scale is unwarranted and entirely unsuited to this quiet rural lane.

# Helen Bedford – Against the Application

I am a neighbour in Chaffeymoor Hill. I look directly onto Grove Farm and I strongly OBJECT to this application which is for a commercial wellness resort unsuited to this rural lane.

In section 3.0 of your report, you set out the following reasons for recommendation with my comments *in italics* 

 Will result in the creation of a business to the benefit of the local rural economy and which is supported by the NPPF and Policy 12 of the Neighbourhood Plan.

Bourton Parish Council objection to this application directly contradicts this statement. Support for local business development is accepted **provided** they:

12 b) Contribute to the character and vitality of the local area.

– A wellness resort and 20 bed B&B is certainly not in character with the lane.

12 c) Protect residential amenity.

This application does not. It will directly affect all of the neighbours.
12 d) Not adversely impact upon road safety.

– This application has large negative implications on road safety given the expected traffic.

12 e) Conform to the environmental and other policies in this plan.

– The development will result in the destruction of mature wildlife habitat.

I suggest therefore that this application breaks each of these provisions.

2) - Represents a contemporary building that in size, design and siting terms will not have any material impact on the rural or landscape character....

Given the demands of Highways for a 66m entrance clearance which will make the building highly visible from the lane, this statement cannot be substantiated.

 Will not result in any material impact to the outlook or aural amenity of any neighbouring dwellings. - Is acceptable in its heritage, wildlife and highway impacts. I strongly suggest that this development will have a huge impact on the outlook and aural amenity of all of the neighbouring dwellings. It also has material impact on wildlife by the destruction of mature hedging, and road safety by the substantial increase in traffic in the lane.

4) - Tree loss is minimized to examples that are not worthy of protection and a replacement landscaping scheme has been agreed.

The 66m of mature hedging that highways require to be removed forms part of the rural streetscape of Chaffeymoor Hill. To say that this is unworthy of protection is unfortunate at the very least. The remedial landscaping offered is no replacement for the habitat and heritage destroyed.

There is no support for this commercial development on this site by any of the local community and the Parish Council. It is entirely unsuited to this quiet rural lane.

# James Peddle – Against the application

I am a neighbour of Grove Farm on Chaffeymoor Hill and strongly OBJECT to the application for a commercial enterprise which is clearly unsuitable for a very quiet, single-tracked, rural lane.

I would like to draw particular attention to section 4.0, 'Key Planning Issues', and the case officer's observation of 'Access and Parking'. (Case officer notes in italics): 'Sufficient on-site parking available while sight line improvements onto Chaffeymoor Hill will ensure that the free flow of traffic and highway safety will not be adversely affected.'

Very simply, the application shows parking for 8 vehicles including those of the applicants, yet the proposed B&B will provide accommodation for an additional 20 persons. Given the applicants stated desire for the yoga studio to provide space for other practitioners as well as themselves it is fair to assume that this parking provision will prove woefully inadequate and that additional vehicles will need to be accommodated, either on site or on the unlit single track lane.

Bourton NP policy 4 states:

a) The impact of increased traffic resulting from development proposals should not detract from the village character and the rural ambience of roads and lanes and is **a material consideration** in the determination of Planning Applications.

and

c) Any new development or alteration shall ensure that frontages do not become dominated by hard surfacing and parked vehicles.

I would strongly contend that this application contravenes both of these policies.

Despite the Design and Access Statement having been amended (circa-Dec 2021) it remains grossly misleading since much of it is unchanged from when the application was merely for the yoga studio at Grove Farm. The claim within the DAS that the

proposal would have no visual impact on the street scene is patently untrue. With regard to free flow of traffic and highway safety, the highways demand for a clear 66m visibility splay onto Chaffeymoor Hill is a visual, ecological and heritage disaster to create a commercial entrance onto what is currently a rural lane. It is in no way mitigated by the offer to plant a new hedge line some way back from the original.

There is not one voice of support for this development from local residents on Chaffeymoor Hill or indeed the Parish council, who voted unanimously to reject the proposal which is utterly unsuitable for a quiet, single carriageway lane.

### **Bourton Parish Council – Against the application**

Bourton Parish Council OBJECTS strongly to this proposal, for the following reasons:

- 1. The recently amended Design and Access Statement contains a disingenuous claim, in relation to the impact of the proposed development. The relevant quote from the DAS being: '... The proposal would have no visual impact on the street scene elevation and is obscured and hidden by existing mature landscaping with new hedgerows to reinforce this privacy. It is concluded then that the development would not introduce demonstrable harm to the amenity of any neighbouring properties'. This is grossly misleading; the impact on the amenity of neighbours and on the natural environment arising from approval of this development would be immense.
- 2. The business envisaged at Grove Farm, with its change of classification to C1, would amount to it becoming a 'Wellness' resort. The anticipated increase in traffic volumes would pose a significant risk to pedestrians and horse-riders along Chaffeymoor Hill, a narrow country lane. This would be in contravention of Bourton Neighbourhood Plan (NP) Policy 4(a): Traffic.
- 3. The Highways Authority's visibility solution for the exit from Grove Farm onto Chaffeymoor Hill would entail extensive removal of a high hedge with many mature trees. Creating the visibility splays will have a highly detrimental impact on the secluded character of Chaffeymoor Hill since, as directed by Highways, trees and hedging '...must be cleared / excavated to a level not exceeding 0.60 metres above the relative level of the adjacent carriageway'. This would be in direct contravention of NP Policy 2: Settlement Pattern and Character and <u>NP Policy 6: Biodiversity</u>.
- 4. Should this application be approved and clearance of trees and hedging as directed be actioned, the yoga studio, attached decking and adjacent pond, which is already used for wild swimming, would be highly visible from the road degrading further the setting of Chaffeymoor Hill.
- 5. Local residents have already encountered significant noise and unwelcome behaviour from current activities at Grove Farm, which has resulted in complaints being raised with the EA. Accommodating up to 20 guests in Grove Farm will have a much greater detrimental impact on this quiet residential area.

6. The site plan shows parking provision for just 8 vehicles whereas, given the nature of this planning application, the number of cars will be much greater especially if yoga courses (etc.) attract local participants in addition to those staying in Grove Farm's B&B accommodation. Parking for up to 20 vehicles, as would doubtless be required based on the change of use and activities being planned, would mean that the frontage to Grove Farm would become dominated by hard surfacing and parked cars in direct contravention of <u>NP Policy 4(b): Parking</u>.

This application should therefore be REFUSED.

# Rebecca Smith, Western Design Architects - Agent

We are pleased that the scheme is supported by Planning, Conservation and Highways Officers following positive and enthusiastic comments through the pre-application enquiry.

Whilst the Parish Council supported the original proposal, they have raised some objections which are representative of public comments following the change of use application and we would like to clarify and dispel any misunderstandings.

The existing access off Chaffeymoor Hill does not meet current highways standards but changes are required to improve the visibility splays in order to address the concerns raised by Dorset Highways.

The work required will reduce the height of existing shrubs to no more than 600mm including the removal of some small self-seeded trees. This could be undertaken outside of this application using permitted development rights but have been included as part of this application for completeness and therefore does not contravene NP Policy 2.

The same visibility splay improvement work was done at Chaffeymoor Grange, a wedding venue sited directly opposite Grove Farm. Other properties on Chaffeymoor Hill benefit from low level hedging and walls to provide adequate visibility splays. The proposal would not have a detrimental impact on the setting and secluded character of Chaffeymoor Hill but would in fact bring it in line with the existing street scene and character of the area.

The applicant will reinforce the existing hedge-line on their land to maintain privacy screening and to enhance local biodiversity. This screening will also mitigate any visual impact from cars on site. The scheme would not contravene NP Policy 4(c) and 4(b) as there is 233sqm of existing hard landscaping around the house which is ample for visitors, and no further landscaping for vehicle provision is proposed.

Regarding NP Policy 4(a), we would like to stress that the applicants will be living at the property and so numbers of groups for multi-day retreats on-site will be limited to 150 days per year therefore limiting vehicular trip frequency. The transport management plan submitted explains the measures the applicants are taking to reduce vehicular traffic to the site including a collection service from the local train station.

We believe the proposals accord with the neighbourhood plan as a whole, as does your own officer. The scheme has been sensitively designed with neighbours and character of the area in mind, and every effort has been made to ensure it sits sensitively within the wider context. It will provide a small-scale social enterprise within the community, contribute to the character and vitality of the area and provide social and economic benefits.

The proposal meets both National NPPF and local planning policies. As such there should be a presumption in favour of development. I therefore ask that the committee grants approval accordingly.

# Item 4b - P/FUL/2021/01429 - Land at E 387256 N 123908, Wincombe Lane, Shaftesbury

## Jeff Chown – Support/Against the application

We note the plans indicate connecting a new footpath to the existing footpath 3 at the North West corner of the site. We draw to your attention this is not permissible. The footpath runs over land owned by ourselves and we erected the fence along the Northern boundary of the site over thirty years ago, under the relevant highways act we are obliged to maintain free and unobstructed passage along the route of footpath for the benefit of public pedestrians, we are not however obliged to provide access to the footpath by breaching our boundary fence, this could only be done by ourselves or with our permission.

The current footpath 3 is exactly that and is not for the use of cyclists we are considering re-erecting the stiles at either end of our land that were taken down by ourselves some years ago to aid the free passage of walkers.

Toward the eastern end of Footpath 3 bounding the site is a native indigenous hedge of many species including hazel, within the hedge is a colony of HAZEL DORMICE which is a highly endangered species close to potential extinction and it is therefore vital this area remains undisturbed, I believe this section of footpath 3 bounding the site should be redirected to within the site to preserve the habitat of the dormice and to provide a feeding corridor for the bats that are colonised nearby and feed along the hedgerows of the site.

# **Gillian Lewis – Against the application**

Following COP26 undertakings by UK government and Dorset Council's declaration of a climate emergency, please ensure that conditions are made to this amended application which include requirements for full environmental mitigation actions including types of building materials (eg. minimal concrete and plastics), sustainable energy generation, solar capture, sewage treatment, road surfaces, water run off and all other high impact aspects - so that this proposed development would meet 21st century climate risk reduction and environmental care needs.

Please set an example and use this and all future planning development decisions to demonstrate Dorset Council's actual commitment to addressing the climate emergency.

# Lester Dibben – Against the application

Please would members consider the impact of the development in light of the Design Statement, adopted into the local plan, The COP 26 measures, and the further impact of so much more residential development while so much of the promised infrastructure remains undelivered?

I am concerned Shaftesbury Town Council called off its P&H committee meeting of the 4th of January 2022, this has left a hole in the proper procedure to allow Shaftesbury Residents a voice. Where I note the application will not be turned down one would expect that all the climate measures possible would be imposed onto this site, before the final decision is made, it appears they are not.

I note Dorset Council declared a "Climate emergency" as a result all appropriate measures must be put in place, otherwise it would seem a pointless declaration.

DC elected members have held no public event or held a STC meeting to ensure all the long list of promises in the adopted Design statement, Ref: the enquiry by design process held over three and a half years under my chairmanship, working with the princes trust. This when added to the current climate disaster requires immediate action to ensure no further damage is done.

Please note most of the promised infrastructure still remains undelivered. Proactive support for the Community Interest Companies proposals well supported would go a long way in addressing some of these issues before further development is undertaken.

Indeed I would expect all current developers to be invited to explain how they are going to fulfil the requirements following COP26 and the up and coming COP27, a public meeting for this event should be called.

Please ensure me and the residents of Shaftesbury that the process will be delayed for a short time to allow residents a voice?

Would you also provide me with Dorset Councils policy backing up its climate emergency declaration and its climate rescue policy along with the named officers and portfolio holders.

# Karen Tippins – Against the application

I fail to see how this planning application of a further 162 houses can be granted with the current abysmal record shown by all levels of government in providing Shaftesbury with the required infrastructure to support the rapid town's expansion. Dorset Council appears to be with-holding s106 developer's contributions from Shaftesbury and preventing the town from having the agreed and promised LEAPs, LAPs, cycleways, educational facilities, NHS support and the agreed spine linking road plus East of Shaftesbury bypass corridor. All facilities have been agreed and approved with each Planning Application for:- Parcel 1 through to 7 (700 houses) of the East of Shaftesbury Persimmon developments, Churchill housing Coppice St (43 dwellings), Blue Cedar Bimport (15-20 dwellings) and now Redrow Littledown (170 houses).

Promised infrastructure:-

- Where has the Maple Road link to Wincombe Lane spine road gone; this was a key section of road infrastructure and was a planning obligation for Barratts, why has this been 'dropped' by Highways?
- Where has the importance of the East of Shaftesbury Bypass Corridor gone and the impact of the Barratts development has on making sure this is implemented?

- Why hasn't land been secured for a new primary school in any Local Plan?
- Why isn't there an open and transparent audit trail of how s106 developers' contributions amounting to millions of pounds for Shaftesbury that has been collected by Dorset Council and released to who and on what basis and at which Committee?
- Where are the promised cycleways paid for by s106 contributions to connect the East with the West of Shaftesbury?
- Where has the Affordable Housing Contributions been spent on the back of building houses in Shaftesbury?
- Who is being allocated the Affordable Housing? Why aren't Dorset Council Housing Enabling Team proving to Shaftesbury of this constant Affordable Housing Need is valid and is being correctly allocated?
- Why hasn't Shaftesbury been allocated £3.4M of LEP from Central Government for infrastructure (why has this only gone to Gillingham). Shaftesbury has high priority needs for LEP and has increased in size by over 25%?
- An explanation is needed from DC as to why no new play areas have been implemented in Shaftesbury since 2015. People have moved into their new houses in Shaftesbury, they were promised facilities and yet their roads haven't been adopted by Highways, they are <u>living in a building site type</u> <u>condition</u> for years, they have been provided with no play facilities, no cycleways, no promised community hall – just rows and rows of housing. Barratts can't go ahead until Dorset Council sorts out the current mess in Shaftesbury due to excessive housing build with no infrastructure roll out.

# Linda Nunn, Cranbourne Chase AONB – Against the application

The AONB Partnership is disappointed that the applicant has not submitted a lighting strategy and plan for this development that has the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and its International Dark Sky Reserve to the north, east, and south of it.

The Partnership strongly advises the Committee to reinforce the proposed Condition 4 as follows [changes in red]:

4. Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved above dampproof course level, a scheme showing precise details of all external lighting (including appearance, supporting columns, siting, technical details, power, intensity, orientation and screening of the lamps) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any such scheme shall also comply with the lighting requirements for Environmental Zone 1 as set out by the Institution of Lighting Professionals and those in the approved Biodiversity Plan dated 20th April 2021. The approved scheme shall be implemented before the development is occupied and shall be permanently maintained thereafter. No further external lighting shall be installed on site without the prior approval, in writing, of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of the protection of the AONB and its International Dark Sky Reserve, the amenity of the area, public safety, protected species and biodiversity.

# **Brian Watts – Against the application**

I live at Higher Wincombe House, one of four properties in the Hamlet of Higher Wincombe, which is only accessible via the part of Wincombe Lane that becomes private road as is described as bridleway N1/38. The hamlet itself lies in the Parish of Donhead St Mary, Wiltshire, although is within 170m of the boundary of the proposed site.

The four properties in the hamlet all have easements for right of access along Wincombe Lane. Those easements extend south west of the proposed site and roundabout along Wincombe Lane. At no time were the residents of the hamlet consulted by the developers nor have any of the residents granted permission for the alteration of their easements or the interference thereof. The proposal in your papers today under the section "Highway safety, access and parking " that a plans for a four-arm roundabout have been submitted to "to improve farm vehicle access north of the previously approved roundabout" again have not been approved by ourselves. The fact that the term "farm vehicle access" is used shows inconsideration of the residents of this hamlet.

Consultation has been initiated with the developers, at the request of the residents of the hamlet, however, that consultation regarding access is ongoing, and to date no amicable access solution has been agreed. Although any development in that location is likely to cause interference, inconvenience and disadvantage to the residents of the hamlet both during and after construction and in fact is already doing so.

A major concern to inconvenience, in addition to the proposed access, is the access along Wincombe Lane. With the primary school in Wincombe Lane, there are already access issues at the start and end of school. With a minimum 381 additional vehicles as suggested by the allocated parking spaces those issues will increase and it is likely that there will also be further issues where Wincombe Lane is reduced to single file width of 3.1 metres just south west of the proposed access.

I request that consideration be given to the concerns raised in this statement and also of the objections of Shaftesbury Town Council in your deliberation on this application.

# Liz Evans, Development Manager, Sovereign Housing Association – Supports the application

We are delighted to support this application by David Wilson Homes. Shaftesbury is an area of great affordable housing need and high prices, and approval will help significantly in easing this.

We have in place a formal development agreement with them to deliver the Shared Ownership and Affordable Rented units on the site, which will be delivered progressively throughout the site. We are especially pleased that (compared with the original application) the new scheme brings a greater proportion of the affordable units on-site, giving a greater contribution towards housing needs. We are satisfied that the units are appropriate in design, size, and configuration to meet local housing needs in the area.

I hope that councillors will take this opportunity to positively address this key priority by granting approval today.

# Peter Yeo, Mampitts Lane Community Land Trust CIC – Supports the application

When considering what purpose the Barratts s106 funds should be allocated for, please note that East Shaftesbury is already in great need of a Community Neighbourhood Hall to cater for its already greatly increased population and the Barratts development is not providing any community hall, park or play park.

Fortunately, six permanently unpaid East Shaftesbury residents formed 'The Mampitts Lane Community Land Trust CIC' in July 2020 and have made a planning obligation fulfilling bid to Dorset Council in 2020 (updated in November 2021) to become nominated to take ownership of the s106 Community Land at Mampitts Lane in East Shaftesbury and use existing s106 funds to deliver, own and manage the long overdue Community Hall, Park and Play Park planning obligations at this location.

A petition of 720 supporters was handed in to Dorset Council in 2020 and 2021. The Mampitts Lane Community Land is currently owned by Persimmon Homes and The Mampitts Lane Community Land Trust CIC are the only third party body that has a planning obligation fulfilling bid, and which they guarantee to deliver.

The submitted costed project budget for this bid proposal shows that these Community facilities (designed by our architect and landscape architect) can be delivered successfully within existing s106 funds, however some additional s106 funds from the Barratts Development earmarked for a 'Community Hall and park/play park' would enable an enhanced Community facility to be delivered at the Mampitts Lane s106 Community Land site (the only such site in Shaftesbury) to benefit all Shaftesbury Residents, and especially those in the East, including the Barratts development.

# Jon Gateley, Barratt Developments - Applicant

Good morning. Firstly my thanks to the officer for his thorough report and of course, I support the recommendation.

I must underline that the principle of developing this site has been accepted through the Local Plan, the draft Dorset Plan, and the previous permission. You may be aware that initial works have commenced under existing consents, including a revised access granted last year.

This new application improves upon the previous one, with the main changes being:

-Providing 162 not 191 units by reducing density, and omitting a small area south of Wincombe Lane.

-Achieving <u>more</u> affordable (48 units not 29), bringing the full requirement onsite, instead of 15% plus payment.

-A more informal design, reflecting the countryside location, with a less urban structure.

-Delivering a *David Wilson* scheme instead of Barratt, with more up-to-date, efficient designs.

We've worked with officers on amendments, and agree that the design is (in their words) *"acceptable, providing an appropriate setting with the sensitive countryside edge, including landscape mitigation and green space."* 

Technical consultees are satisfied, including Highways, Ecology, Rights of Way, Environmental Health, Drainage, Minerals, and Trees. The few objections are mainly on principle, and don't acknowledge existing permissions. But to address the Town Council's main concerns;

-There is no obstruction to the bypass, as confirmed by Highways. The eastern boundary is the same as before, other than a small drainage area.

-The housing stands <u>outside</u> the odour zone.

-Wincombe Lane can accommodate vehicle movements, and these are reduced from before.

-We comply with the affordable requirement (30%, not 40%).

-We provide several footpath connections, and policy compliant greenspace.

We share the Town Council and AONB's concern to minimise visual impacts. But there is little change from the old permission; in fact there's the opportunity for landscape improvement, through details to be approved by condition. There are also habitat and hedgerow gains.

Through our S106 many other benefits are delivered, including:

-£31,662 for footpaths

-£200,000 for leisure/indoor sport,

-£950,000 for education (primary and secondary)

-£54,594 for healthcare,

-£11,700 for libraries

-£446,000 for maintenance/ improvement of existing greenspace, play and sport -£48,000 for allotments.

If approved, we'd commence before Spring, and these contributions would be paid in tandem.

Overall this application improves on the previous consent, whilst bringing immediate gains, most importantly dealing with the urgent need for housing whilst the Council's supply is just 3.3 years. All 162 units would be delivered within 5 years, with first completions this year. As well as providing homes on an allocated site, this would reduce the Council's exposure at appeals on sites it doesn't want.

So I fully agree with the officer that this proposal represents sustainable development, and would respectfully ask members to grant planning permission.

# Item 4c - WD/D/20/003114 - Sandringham Sports Centre, Armada Way, Dorchester

## Colin Lawley, Chairman Dorchester Bowls Club – Against the Application

We are surprised this application has been listed for hearing when as far as we are aware you have not adjudicated upon our submission that the application is not valid for failure to comply with the statutory obligation to serve notice on all owners having an interest in the application site. The description "owner" means someone having a freehold interest or a leasehold interest with at least 7 years unexpired in the application site. The reference to application site includes all land necessary to carry out the proposed application (e.g. land required for access to the site from a public highway, landscaping, car parking and open areas around buildings).

The rather draconian wording of sections 65(5) and 327(A) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that local planning authorities " must not entertain" applications where statutory requirements to notify owners and certify they have done so have not been met. In the 2018 case of Bishop -v- Westminster Council the Court warned that all involved in the planning process should make sure all title issues are considered and the ownership certificate completed correctly. Recklessness and a cavalier disregard of mandatory requirements can lead to permissions being quashed as was the decision in this case where due care had not been taken. As soon as Dorchester Bowls Club and Dorchester Rifle Club became aware of the application the Council were notified there was an ownership certificate issue but chose to ignore this on being advised by the Town Council they were the only owner required to be served despite they having granted the leases to both clubs with more then 7 years unexpired. These leases granted both clubs parking rights over the whole of the car park including the area now sought to be excavated and built upon. These leases required each lessee to bear a proportion of the cost of the repair and maintenance of the whole of the car park and the Rifle Club building is built on the site and will be overshadowed by the proposed Ballet School. Despite the report of the case officer acknowledging that the Bowls and Rifle Clubs are owners the report continues to assert that our submission of invalidity relates to non service upon the Duchy of Cornwall, the previous freehold owners. We have made it clear this statement is untrue. We continue to assert the application is invalid for failure to comply with statutory requirements when the relevant information was and has been at all times available to the Applicant, the Agents and the Council with the benefit of due care and attention.

# Richard Burden, Chairman Dorchester Rifle and Pistol Club – Against the application

Dorchester Rifle and Pistol Club has made a number of submissions since the application was made, and it is still very concerned that

- the online application file makes no mention of this Club's planning permission [22 12 1989] which is a material consideration as an immediate neighbour, and it requires a specific number of identified car parking spaces to be set out,
- neither the applicant nor the architect have accepted invitations to meet and discuss the proposals and the potential impacts on our premises,
- surface water flooding of our premises has occurred twice in the past decade and the proposal will increase runoff, and increase risk to our buildings,
- despite identifying this issue months ago neither the architect nor case officer has sought details from DRPC,
- the drainage report admits no survey has been done, surely a significant shortcoming, and the proposed drains run uphill!
- the Ballet Club has insufficient parking for its needs at its current site,
- the Highway Authority has failed to follow NPPF [2021] 104e and 108 guidance as the proposal reduces the available parking, increases the parking demand, and puts pressure on off site, street, parking,
- there is no provision [NPPF112e] for 'charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles',
- the proposed building is unnecessarily high, industrial in style, and is orientated to obliterate the open grassy bank,
- the proposed scale, cladding, and colour will be depressing, whereas reorientating by 90 degrees along the eastern boundary would retain the green space and provide a more comfortable 'fit' to the location,
- in failing to ascertain relevant facts the agent appears to have been avoiding doing all the constructive things that should be done when seeking to promote a community facility, namely talking with neighbouring clubs / facilities to seek to find a solution that all can support!

It is also worrying that attention to relevant detail is missing from your committee report in that both the name and acronym for this Club are consistently wrong; that does not inspire confidence. Furthermore, the Council cannot choose to opt out of its responsibilities and liabilities for flooding and damage to the DRPC premises if it approves the submitted application; it will be held liable.

### DRPC asks the committee to

- a. defer its decision and
- b. instruct the agent / applicant to discuss with neighbours a scheme that the clubs and nearby residents can support.

### Lesley Cocker, Dorchester Ballet and Dance – Applicant

Dorchester Ballet and Dance has been providing not-for-profit affordable dance classes to people of all ages for over 60 years and became a registered charity (number 1087930) in 2000. The school's founder vowed, "Bringing dance to all, regardless of age, wealth or ability".

Unable to find suitable premises the charity currently rents an industrial unit, but the building is small, aging, and inaccessible for many users. A purpose-built facility would allow the dance school to meet the changing health and wellness needs of the local community as well as unmet demand. With current and future housing allocations, Dorchester continues to grow, creating greater need.

Dorchester Town Council has been aware of our search for premises over several years and offered this site in a parking area for which they hold the freehold; they have confirmed that no other party has any rights within the site that would be affected by the development.

The Sandringham site has c. 120 parking spaces. The Town Council have confirmed that parking in the area rarely exceeds two thirds of its capacity. While up to 15 spaces will be lost as a result of the building, many of these will be replaced by remarking the area.

The charity's current premises have use of 11 parking spaces which are rarely full.

The dance school's location on Poundbury Industrial Estate makes it difficult for families to walk to their classes; relocation close to schools and a residential area will increase students' walking and cycling opportunities. The charity will not require coaches to access the site.

Water run-off from the roof will be addressed by new soak-away drainage. A drainage strategy has been outlined by consultants, GAP, and filtration tests undertaken. I understand that a previous flooding event to the rifle club was resolved by maintenance to the existing drainage.

Insulation will meet current building regulations which will also mitigate noise. Construction will be by a reputable building firm and the project overseen by Crickmay Stark Architects. Dencher Consulting Engineers will be responsible for elements of structure including foundations and these will be designed to avoid damage to adjacent buildings – construction will also need to meet Building Controls.

Dorchester Ballet and Dance is committed to green initiatives and is exploring the inclusion of solar panels, air-source heat pumps and EV charging facilities. Low Carbon Dorset will be consulted until the conclusion of their programme.

The studio's outward appearance and hours of use are in keeping with the existing leisure facilities at the site.

Thank you for the opportunity to address questions raised by local residents and businesses.

# Item 4d - P/FUL/2021/03534 - Cheselbourne Village School, Drakes Lane, Cheselbourne

**No Representations** 

# Item 4e - P/FUL/2021/03872 - Cerne Abbas Church of England First School, Duck Street, Cerne Abbas

# School Council, Cerne Abbas First School

We are the School Council from Cerne Abbas CE VA First School and we have heard that some people are not happy about our school having solar panels on both sides of the school roof.

We want to help our environment as much as we can and do what we can to stop our earth getting polluted.

We are still quite young and we want the world we grow up in to be a healthy place for us as well as our children and their children too. Having solar panels on both sides will not only help keep our world healthy but will also help reduce the cost of our bills and we could spend that money on resources to help our learning.

We would like to do everything we can to help our world no matter how small. We feel so lucky that someone would pay for solar panels to enable us to do this. Our vision is to be the best we can and feel that by caring for our environment it enables us to do the best we can for our environment.

Please let us have solar panels on both sides of the rood to help us help the world.

Thank you very much.

From Cerne Abbas CE VA First School Council

# Derek Moss, Dorset Council Assets and Property – Applicant

This statement is about the application for solar panels on Cerne Abbas and Sticklands Schools, where the amount of solar PV outlined in the application is at risk of being significantly reduced based on the aesthetic considerations of Conservation officers.

DC has been successful in a grant application for carbon reduction technology installations which is 100% funding, so a once in a lifetime opportunity. Indeed subsequent phases of this funding scheme now require significant match funding. The key grant restriction is that it has to be spent (i.e. technologies installed) by end March 2022, in line with the need for urgent climate action. Any solar PV not installed now is at significant risk of not being installed for many years. The extra panels, as well as doubling emissions reductions, would help reduce running costs for the schools, which in turn allows the installation of renewable heating systems. This is because renewable heating systems are more expensive to run than fossil fuel ones, and no schools can accept increased running costs when their budgets are already under such pressure. Without the full PV arrays, the conversion to renewable heating is at serious risk of not proceeding now or in the future. And so the potential effect of reducing the size of the installations is greater than just the direct carbon savings from the PV panels. For these sites, there are no suitable alternative renewable heating oil).

Solar panels are temporary and can be taken down at the end of their useful life to return the roof to its original state. There will be no physical damage to the buildings.

DC has recognised the urgency and importance of the climate issue by declaring a Climate Emergency. This implies that we have acknowledged that we can't just keep on doing the same things as we have always done that have created the emergency; something needs to change: such as giving emissions reductions more weight in planning decisions when compared to temporary changes to aesthetics. This is arguably a very simple (and cheap!) thing to do but the first of many changes that need to occur.

Whilst we fully respect the need to maintain aesthetics in some circumstances there is a need to balance that against the climate and ecological emergency. In these instances, we feel that the benefit of the solar installation if far greater for the local community, Dorset and beyond, than the subjective effect on aesthetics.

The action taken on climate change now will determine the outcomes for the planet and future generations who inhabit it. We would urge the planning decisions taken today to place the necessary weight on these considerations, and the proposed planning applications which are very much in line with the recognised science, and emergency declared at both an international and national level and by Dorset Council.

# Item 4f - P/FUL/2021/04519 - Stickland's CE VA Primary School, Evershot

# Eco-Committee, Stickland's CE VA Primary School

We, the children of Stickland's Primary School, ask that you reconsider the amount of solar panels installed on our school. We understand that in our idyllic conservation area, you may fear that it reduces our school buildings appearance, but, sadly, our school *will not* have an appearance if we continue to let climate change prevail over us and do nothing to prevent it. So, investing in solar panels would truly be a good addition to our beautiful area with a positive outcome to the village as well.

Yes, solar panels aren't the prettiest but they would have several benefits to our school including helping to reduce the amount of fossil fuels we use. They are also more energy efficient; imagine our conservation area with less fossil fuels – how many animals and their eco systems will thrive greater than ever before? So when the future generation asks us why we didn't do anything about climate change whilst we still had the chance, what will we say? Simply we couldn't be bothered or yet another dismal excuse?

So why don't we act now, as we still have the chance. By installing the solar panels, it will enable us to save money so we will be able to buy more resources; as a small school all financial gains are incredibly important, additionally what we can buy, may be eco-friendlier.

This is our school, and we want to protect it. The more solar panels we have the greater and more positive affect it has on our planet. Hopefully other schools will follow in our path (if we get the desired amount), and then Dorset will be much more eco. Surely this is a good thing?

So many children in our small school care about our beautiful planet and are looking to you to ensure the future of our natural area is secure and stable – a well-balanced eco system.

Here are what the children in our school think:

"We wish for the total amount of solar panels, so that future generations have a better home." Nikola (Y5)

"I think that it is important that everybody has a valued life - that climate change won't harm that. We are the children and our school is the future. We want to live happily." Felice (Y6)

In conclusion, we ask you, as a school and a community, to reconsider the amount of solar panels you will give us as the advantages are truly substantial, for all.

Yours sincerely

Bea, Chloe and Nikola (speaking on behalf of all the children at Stickland's School)

# Kathy, McCann, Headteacher, Stickland's Primary School

Ahead of the planning meeting to discuss the solar panels at Stickland's School, I would like you to please consider the following:

- Currently our heating system uses oil. Clearly this is not an eco-friendly fuel, it is becoming, and in the future will become ever more expensive. A switch to solar power would help to address the environmental impact of the fuel that we currently use.
- As a small school, with an ever shrinking budget, we have had to cut back on many things for the children and within the school. Unfortunately we are almost at the point of needing to consider redundancies for staff, so again, any other savings that can be made would benefit all within the school.
- As a whole school pupils and staff, we are very conscious of our impact on the environment. Solar panels will help to reduce our carbon footprint. Whilst we fully appreciate that Evershot is a conservation area, we believe that solar panels are becoming much more accepted due to their positive impact. I believe that the benefit of having them fitted must be considered, as the negative impact that we, as humans are having on the world needs to be reversed.
- Solar panels will not change the architectural and historic interest of the school or the village .

# Item 4g - P/HOU/2021/04457 - 6 Culliford Road, Dorchester

# **No Represenations**

This page is intentionally left blank

# Northern Area Planning Committee 11 January 2022 Decisions List

### APPLICATION NUMBER: P/FUL/2020/00052

APPLICATION SITE: Grove Farm, Chaffeymoor Hill, Bourton, Dorset, SP8 5BY

**PROPOSAL:** Erect Yoga Studio with attached deck and sauna facilities, use of existing on site parking and turning to serve the proposed use, improvements to the access onto Chaffeymoor Hill and change of use Grove Farm from C3 to C1 use to provide B&B accommodation for not more than 20 persons in connection with the proposed use.

**DECISION:** Grant, subject to conditions

### CONDITIONS:

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. External materials used in the development hereby permitted shall be as specified in section 7 of the planning application forms accompanying this application.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.

3. The yoga studio and bed and breakfast accommodation hereby permitted shall only be carried out in support of one another as part of a single planning unit and shall only be used by clients attending the yoga studio. The approved uses shall only take place within the area outlined red on drawing no: 01 rev C and shall only be carried out in connection with the residential occupation of Grove Farm.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area within the countryside.

4. No playing of amplified music or voices shall take place anywhere on the land shown edged red and blue on drawing no: 01 rev C.

Reason: In the interests of aural amenity.

5. No external lighting whatsoever shall be placed anywhere within the red line site, without first obtaining the prior approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Any request for external lighting shall include details of the number, type and design of luminaires (including output), means of support along with details of orientation and screening. Any such external lighting must be installed and retained in compliance with the approved details.

Reason: To minimise light spread to safeguard the night-time rural environment and in the interests of wildlife.

6. Apart from instructors, no more than 20 persons shall be present at any one time on the site in connection with the use hereby permitted.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

7. Bed and breakfast accommodation provided at the site shall not exceed 20 persons, shall only be occupied by persons attending the yoga studio and shall only be operated by persons residing at Grove Farm as shown on drawing no:01 rev C.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

8. Prior to the erection of the access gates shown drawing no: 13B details of size, design and materials shall be submitted for the prior approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The gates, which shall only open inwards, shall be sited and constructed in accordance with the approved details and retained as such for the life of the development.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and highway safety.

9. Before first use of the development hereby permitted the visibility splays shown on drawing no:13 B (version received on 16/12/21) must first be cleared/excavated to a level not exceeding 0.60 metres above the relative level of the adjacent carriageway and shall thereafter be maintained without any impediment to their use for the life of the development.

Reason: In the interests of the free flow of traffic and highway safety.

10. Before first use of the development hereby permitted the vehicle parking, turning and cycle parking shown on drawing no:13 B (version received on 16/12/21) shall be provided and maintained without any impediment to their use for the life of the development.

Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable transport options and in the interests of the free flow of traffic and highway safety.

Reason: In the interests of pollution prevention and health and safety.

11. The wildlife safeguarding and enhancement measures set out in the preliminary ecological appraisal compiled by D V Leach and dated August 2020 shall be carried out in the manner specified.

Reason: In the interests of wildlife.

12. The Treecall Consulting Ltd Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) reference no. DS/38020/AC and plan reference no. TC1 Appendix B shall be adhered to in full, subject to the pre-arranged supervision detailed in Appendix C, Section C2.1 of the report by a suitably qualified and pre-appointed tree specialist.

Reason: In the interest of amenity.

13. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans nos: 01 rev C, 02, 03 rev B, 04 rev B, 05 rev A, 06 and 13B (version received 16/12/21 showing new hedgerow at rear edge of visibility splay), and 14 including the specific foundation detailed specified on these drawings.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

14. Within the first planting season following the first use of any of the developments hereby approved, the new hedges at the back edge of the visibility splay as annotated on the drawing 13B (version received on 16/12/21) shall be planted to the specification detailed on the same said drawing. The planting shall thereafter be managed and retained for 15 years with any species that die within that period replaced like for like.

Reason: In the interests of amenity.

### APPLICATION NUMBER: P/FUL/2021/01429

APPLICATION SITE: Land At E 387256 N 123908, Wincombe Lane, Shaftesbury, Dorset

**PROPOSAL:** Erect 162 No. dwellings, form vehicular access, parking, landscaping, open space and carry out ancillary works.

### **DECISION:**

A) Grant, subject to the conditions listed below, and the completion of a legal agreement under section 106 of the town and country planning act 1990 (as amended) in a form to be agreed by the Head of Legal Services to secure the following:

- 1. On-site Affordable Housing provision of 48 Affordable units
- 2. Securement of off-site highway works (if not covered by section 278), and
- 3. Developer financial contributions towards:
  - Allotments
  - Community hall and leisure/indoor sport
  - Education
  - Health
  - Informal outdoor space and maintenance
  - Libraries
  - Play facilities maintenance
  - Rights of Way, and
  - Sports (including maintenance)

B) Refuse permission if the agreement is not completed within 6 months of the date of decision or such extended time as agreed by the Head of Planning.

### **CONDITIONS:**

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

- 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:
  - Amended Site Layout (PLN-1-1101 Rev R)
  - Amended Colour Site Layout (PLN-1-1102 Rev A)
  - Amended Storey Heights Plan (PLN-1-1103 Rev D)
  - Amended Dwelling Types Plan (PLN-1-1104 Rev D)
  - Amended Tenure Plan (PLN-1-1105 Rev E)
  - Amended Parking Plan (PLN-1-1106 Rev D)
  - Amended Refuse Plan (PLN-1-1107 Rev D)
  - Amended Materials Plan (PLN-1-1108 Rev G)
  - Amended Boundary Treatment Plan (PLN-1-1109 Rev G)
  - Amended Fire Strategy Plan (PLN-1-1110 Rev D)

- Site Layout Character Areas (PLN-1-1117)
- Site Layout Open Space (PLN-1-1118)
- Amended Ashdown Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2104 Rev D)
- Amended Archford Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2105 Rev D)
- Amended Hadley Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2106 Rev F)
- Amended Greenwood Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2107 Rev D)
- Amended Parkin Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2108 Rev E)
- Amended Abbeydale Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2109 Rev D)
- Amended Ingleby Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2110 Rev D)
- Amended Kirkdale Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2111 Rev D)
- Amended Avondale Elevations and Plans PLN-1-2112 Rev C PLN-1-2112 Rev D
- Amended SH72 Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2113 Rev C)
- Amended SH51 Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2114 Rev D)
- Amended SH52 Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2115 Rev C)
- Amended SH55 Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2116 Rev C)
- Amended SH54 Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-2117 Rev C)
- Amended Street Scene AA-EE (PLN-1-1150 AA-EE Rev G)
- Amended Street Scene FF-MM (PLN-1-1151 FF-MM Rev G)
- Amended Single Garage Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-3700 Rev C)
- Amended Double Garage Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-3701 Rev C)
- Substation Elevations and Plans (PLN-1-3901)
- Amended Isopachyte Cut and Fill Site Plans (4006\_E; 4007\_E)
- Soakaway Extents Offset Plan (4023\_B)
- Amended Proposed Drainage Layout Plans (4201\_G; 4202\_G; 4203\_G; 4204\_G; 4205\_G; 4206\_A; 4207\_A)
- Amended Manhole Schedules (4210\_F)
- Amended Proposed Surface Finishes (4301\_E; 4302\_E; 4303\_E; 4304\_E; 4305\_E; 4306\_A; 4307\_A)
- Amended Road Levels, Finished Floor Levels & Retaining Walls (4401\_I; 4402\_H; 4403\_H; 4404\_H; 4405\_H; 4406\_A; 4407\_A)
- Drainage Construction Details (4501; 4502; 4503; 4504; 4405)
- Amended Proposed Services Layout Plans (4601\_D; 4602\_D; 4603\_D; 4604\_D; 4605\_D; 4606\_A; 4607\_A)
- Amended Swept Path Analysis Plans Fire (4701\_A; 4702\_A; 4703\_A; 4704\_A; 4705\_B)
- Amended Swept Path Analysis Plans Refuse Vehicle (4711\_A; 4712\_A; 4713\_A; 4714\_A; 4715\_B)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved above damp-proof course level, details and samples of all external facing materials (including, walls, roofs, fenestration detail and man-made boundary features) shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall proceed in accordance with such materials as have been agreed and shall also comply

with the approved Materials Plan (PLN-1-1108 Rev G) and Boundary Treatment Plan (PLN-1-1109 Rev G).

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance of the development.

4. Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved above damp-proof course level, a scheme showing precise details of all external lighting (including appearance, supporting columns, siting, technical details, power, intensity, orientation and screening of the lamps) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any such scheme shall also comply with the lighting requirements as set out in the approved Biodiversity Plan dated 20th April 2021. The approved scheme shall be implemented before the development is occupied and shall be permanently maintained thereafter. No further external lighting shall be installed on site without the prior approval, in writing, of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of the amenity of the area, public safety, protected species and biodiversity.

5. The development hereby approved shall accord with the acoustic measures set out in the Updated Noise Assessment (784-B030059 – June 2021). All the measures set out in the report, including the window design and the use of mechanical ventilation to properties identified in the report, shall be implemented in full prior to first occupation of any dwelling, and thereafter, the measures shall be retained.

Reason: To protect the amenity and living conditions of occupiers of the residential properties.

6. Before the development is occupied or utilised the access, geometric highway layout, turning and parking areas shown on Drawing Number PLN-1-1101 Rev R must be constructed, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. Thereafter, these must be maintained, kept free from obstruction and available for the purposes specified.

Reason: To ensure the proper and appropriate development of the site.

7. Notwithstanding the information shown on the plans approved by this application, no development shall commence until precise details of the access, geometric highway layout, turning and parking areas have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure the proper and appropriate development of the site.

8. Before the development hereby approved is occupied or utilised the following works must have been constructed to the specification of the Planning Authority:

The proposed traffic management measures to reduce vehicle speeds and facilitate safe pedestrian movement as shown on Dwg No 041.0007.111 Rev P6 (or similar scheme to be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority).

Reason: These specified works are seen as a pre-requisite for allowing the development to proceed, providing the necessary highway infrastructure improvements to mitigate the likely impact of the proposal.

9. Before the development hereby approved is occupied or utilised the following works must have been constructed to the specification of the Planning Authority:

The construction of a four-arm roundabout as shown on Dwg No 041.5007.111 Rev C (or similar scheme to be agreed in writing with the Planning Authority).

Reason: These specified works are seen as a pre-requisite for allowing the development to proceed, providing the necessary highway infrastructure improvements to mitigate the likely impact of the proposal.

 Before the development hereby approved commences, the submitted Construction Method Statement (Including Construction Traffic Management Plan – Rev B – dated 04th October 2021) must be implemented and adhered to fully for the full length of the construction period.

Reason: to minimise the likely impact of construction traffic on the surrounding highway network and prevent the possible deposit of loose material on the adjoining highway.

- 11. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in full accordance with the Amended Travel Plan (041.0007/RATP/3 dated 14th December 2021) and the following measures shall be implemented in full:
  - Targets for sustainable travel arrangements.
  - Effective measures for the on-going monitoring of the Travel Plan.
  - A commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives for a period of at least five years from first occupation of the development.
  - Effective mechanisms to achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan by the occupiers of the development.

Reason: In order to reduce or mitigate the impacts of the development upon the local highway network and surrounding neighbourhood by reducing reliance on the private car for journeys to and from the site.

12. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the Biodiversity Plan dated 20th April 2021, as approved by the Council's Certificate of Approval dated 14th December 2021, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of protected species and biodiversity.

13. No development shall commence until a further revised Landscape Strategy, to include amended grassland habitats and any other measures to ensure compliance with the approved Biodiversity Plan dated 20th April 2021, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

Reason: In the interests of protected species and biodiversity, and to accord with the approved Biodiversity Plan.

14. No development shall commence until a Construction Environmental Management Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved details throughout the duration of the construction works.

Reason: In the interests of protected species and biodiversity, and to accord with the approved Biodiversity Plan.

15. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

Reason: In the interests of protected species and biodiversity, and to accord with the approved Biodiversity Plan.

16. No development shall commence until a detailed surface water management scheme for the site, based upon the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, and including clarification of how surface water is to be managed during construction, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality, and to improve habitat and amenity.

17. No development shall commence until details of maintenance and management of both the surface water sustainable drainage scheme and any receiving system have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details. The scheme should include a plan for the lifetime of the development, the arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system, and to prevent the increased risk of flooding.

18. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with the Amended Arboricultural Assessment and Method Statement (14255-AA4-CA dated 24th May 2021). All trees and hedges shown to be retained in the Amended Tree Protection Plan (14255-5) shall be fully safeguarded during the course of site works and building operations. No works shall commence on site until all trees to be protected on and immediately adjoining the site shall be protected from damage for the duration of works on the site to the satisfaction (to be confirmed in writing) of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with BS 5837:2012 (Trees in relation to construction - recommendations) or any new Standard that may be in force at the time that development commences. No unauthorised access or placement of goods, fuels or chemicals, soil or other material shall take place within the tree protection zone(s).

Any trees or hedges removed without the written consent of the Local Planning Authority, or dying or being severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased before the completion of development or up to 12 months after occupation of the last dwelling shall be replaced with trees or hedging of such size, species in a timescale and in positions as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that trees and hedges to be retained are adequately protected from damage to health and stability throughout the construction period and in the interests of amenity.

- 19. No development shall commence on site until a hard and soft landscape scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:
  - details of all trees and other planting to be retained
  - a planting specification to include numbers, size, species and positions of all new trees and shrubs
  - details of existing and proposed levels, walls, fences and other boundary treatment and surface treatment of the open parts of the site together with any lighting
  - street furniture and underground services, and
  - a programme of implementation.

Reason: To ensure that adequate mitigation for the landscape and visual impact of the proposals, the provision of an appropriate hard and soft landscape scheme, and the coordination of that scheme with lighting and service provision has been agreed prior to the commencement of the development.

20. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The works shall be carried out in full prior to the completion of the development or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the agreed hard and soft landscape scheme is implemented.

21. Any trees or other plants indicated in the approved scheme which, within a period of five years from the date of the development being completed, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced during the next planting season with other trees or plants of a species and size to be first approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Hard landscape features will be maintained in perpetuity.

Reason: To ensure that the agreed hard and soft landscaping scheme is established and maintained.

22. No development shall commence on site until a landscape management plan shall, by reference to site layout drawings of an appropriate scale, be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall include long term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas, other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens. The subsequent management of the development's landscaping shall accord with the approved plan.

Reason: To ensure that due regard is paid to the continuing enhancement and maintenance of amenity afforded by the landscape features of communal, public, nature conservation or historical significance.

23. No development shall commence on site until a schedule of landscape maintenance covering a minimum period of five years following substantial completion of the

development (including details of the arrangements for its implementation) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The subsequent maintenance of the development's landscaping shall accord with the approved schedule.

Reason: To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by the proper maintenance of existing and/or new landscape features.

24. No development shall commence on site until details of the surfacing materials to be used on the highway and footways to include the private parking courts shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenity of the area.

- 25. No development shall commence on site until a scheme to identify:
  - i. the relevant affected properties, and
  - ii. the necessary works for the provision of mechanical ventilation to the properties contained within the yellow area as identified in Figures 4 and 5 of the Odour Report (B027127 April 2021),

is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.

Reason: To ensure adequate standards of amenity for the future occupiers of the dwellings.

26. Notwithstanding the details submitted in respect of the Local Equipped Area of Play (LEAP) and Local Area for Play (LAP) areas, the development hereby approved shall not be occupied until full scaled plan and supporting specification details for both LEAP and LAP areas are submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The LEAP and LAP shall be implemented and thereafter managed and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure adequate usable public open space for all future occupiers of the dwellings.

27. Prior to the commencement of the development above damp course level, a Sustainability Statement shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approve an writing. The statement shall include details of the proposed renewable technology measures. The construction of the dwellings shall fully accord with the approved statement.

Reason: to ensure that the development includes sustainably measures.

## APPLICATION NUMBER: WD/D/20/003114

**APPLICATION SITE:** Sandringham Sports Centre, Armada Way, Dorchester, DT1 2TN

PROPOSAL: Erection of single storey dance school with mezzanine and pitched roof

**DECISION:** Grant, subject to conditions

## CONDITIONS:

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

Elevations, section & view (amended) - drawing no. 19/77/1 Rev A, (received 22/06/2021) Floor plans, roof plan & location plan (amended) - drawing no. 19/77/2 Rev B, (received 24/06/2021)

Surface Water Drainage Strategy Layout - drawing no. 21533-GAP-XX-XX-DR-C-9000 P01 (received 06/12/2021)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The development hereby permitted must not be occupied or utilised until a scheme showing precise details of cycle parking facilities is submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The approved scheme must be constructed before the development is occupied and, thereafter, must be maintained, kept free from obstruction and available for the purpose specified.

Reason: To ensure the proper construction of the parking facilities and to encourage the use of sustainable transport modes.

- 4. No works shall commence on site unless a Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved CEMP shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The CEMP shall provide for:
  - i. The hours of construction work and deliveries;
  - ii. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
  - iii. The loading and unloading of plant and materials;
  - iv. The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
  - v. Wheel washing facilities;
  - vi. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;

vii. Measures to ensure the safe access of construction vehicles through Armada Way.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of neighbouring properties and other sports/recreation facilities.

5. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed surface water management scheme for the site, based upon the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the development, and providing clarification of how drainage is to be managed during construction shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed.

Reason: To prevent any increased risk of flooding.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 as amended, and the Town & Country Planning Use Classes Order 1987 as amended (or any order revoking and re-enacting those Orders with or without modification) the premises the subject of this permission shall only be used for the following purposes which fall under Class E of the Use Classes Order: Gymnasium and indoor recreations not involving motorised vehicles or firearms and for no other purposes which fall under Class E.

Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the use remains compatible with surrounding land uses in the area.

7. No works shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant to, and approved by the Planning Authority. This scheme shall cover archaeological fieldwork together with the post-excavation work and publication of the results.

Reason: To safeguard and/or record the archaeological interest on and around the site.

## APPLICATION NUMBER: P/FUL/2021/03534

APPLICATION SITE: Cheselbourne Village School, Drakes Lane, Cheselbourne, DT2 7NT

**PROPOSAL:** Installation of roof mounted solar photovoltaics (PV) equipment and associated infrastructure.

### **DECISION:** Grant, subject to conditions

### CONDITIONS:

1. <u>Time Limit – Commencement of Development</u>

The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. Development in Accordance with Approved Plans and Drawings

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and drawings submitted in support of the application for planning permission:

- i. Drawing Number 01 dated 08/09/2021and titled SIE PLAN;
- ii. Drawing Number 02 dated 08//09/2021 and tilted LOCATION PLAN;
- iii. Drawing Number 03 dated 08/09/2021 and titled ROOF PLAN;
- iv. Drawing Number 06 dated 07/09/2021 and titled PROPOSED ELEVATIONS EAST AND WEST; and
- v. Drawing Number 07 dated 07/09/2021 and titled PROPOSED ELEVATIONS NORTH AND SOUTH.

Reason: To regulate the development having regard to Policies ENV1, ENV4, ENV10, ENV12, ENV13 and COM11 of the adopted West Dorset, Weymouth & Portland Local Plan 2015.

#### INFORMATIVE NOTES

 In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, as the local planning authority, Dorset Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions. The Council worked with the applicant/agent in a positive and proactive manner by providing a pre-application advice service.

Further information relating to this decision may be viewed online through the application webpages accessible by entering the application details at <a href="https://planning.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/">https://planning.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/</a>.

## APPLICATION NUMBER: P/FUL/2021/03872

**APPLICATION SITE:** Cerne Abbas Church of England First School, Duck Street, Cerne Abbas, DT2 7LA

**PROPOSAL:** Installation of roof mounted solar photovoltaic (PV) panels and associated infrastructure.

**DECISION:** Grant, subject to conditions

### CONDITIONS:

1. <u>Time Limit – Commencement of Development</u>

The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

#### 2. Development in Accordance with Approved Plans and Drawings

Unless otherwise required by the conditions of this planning permission, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and drawings submitted in support of the application for planning permission:

- i. Drawing Number 01 dated 17/09/2021 and titled SITE PLAN;
- ii. Drawing Number 02 dated 17/09/2021 and tilted LOCATION PLAN;
- iii. Drawing Number 03 dated 17/09/2021 and titled ROOF PLAN;
- iv. Drawing Number 06 dated 17/09/2021 and titled PROPOSED EAST AND WEST ELEVATIONS; and
- v. Drawing Number 07 dated 17/09/2021 and titled PROPOSED NORTH AND SOUTH ELEVATIONS.
- 3. Condition 3 Withdrawn by the Committee
- 4. Panel Removal

Within three months of any solar panel hereby permitted no longer being used for the generation of electricity, the panel and any associated mounting brackets and framework shall be removed and the underlying roof covering shall be restored to its pre-development condition.

Reason: To secure the timely removal of any unused solar panels and to secure the appropriate restoration of the roof in the interest of minimising harm to heritage significance and of preserving the character and appearance of the Cerne Abbas Conservation Area having regard to Policies ENV1, ENV4, ENV10, ENV12 and COM11 of the adopted West Dorset, Weymouth & Portland Local Plan 2015.

## **INFORMATIVE NOTES**

- 1. In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, as the local planning authority, Dorset Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions. Dorset Council worked with the applicant/agent in a positive and proactive manner by providing a pre-application advice service.
- 2. Further information relating to this decision may be viewed online through the application webpages accessible by entering the application details at <a href="https://planning.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/">https://planning.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/</a>.

## APPLICATION NUMBER: P/FUL/2021/04519

APPLICATION SITE: Stickland's CE VA Primary School, Summer Lane, Evershot, DT2 0JP

**PROPOSAL:** Install roof mounted solar photovoltaic (PV) panels, 2 No. wall mounted air source heat pumps and associated infrastructure.

### **DECISION:** Grant, subject to conditions

### CONDITIONS:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

- 2. Unless otherwise required by the condition of this planning permission, the development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and drawings submitted in support of the application for planning permission:
  - i. Drawing Number 02 dated 05/10/2021 and tilted PROPOSED ELEVATIONS Rev A;
  - ii. Drawing No 03 dated 05/10/2021 and titled ROOF PLAN;
  - iii. Drawing No 04 dated 06/10/2021 and titled LOCATION PLAN; and
  - iv. Drawing No 05 dated 06/10/2021 and titled SITE PLAN.

Reason: To regulate the development having regard to Policies ENV1, ENV4, ENV10, ENV12 and COM11 of the adopted West Dorset, Weymouth & Portland Local Plan 2015.

 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans and drawings submitted as part of the application, no solar panels and no externally visible plant or equipment shall be installed on the southwest-ward and the southeast-ward facing roof planes of the original school building.

Reason: In the interest of preserving the character and appearance of the Evershot Conservation Area and to limit harm to heritage significance having regard to Policies ENV1, ENV4, ENV10, ENV12 and COM11 of the adopted West Dorset, Weymouth & Portland Local Plan 2015.

4. Within three months of any solar panel or air source heat pump hereby permitted no longer being used for the generation of electricity or heat, the panel or air source heat pump and any associated mounting brackets shall be removed and any underlying roof covering and stonework shall be restored to its pre-development condition.

Reason: To secure the timely removal of any unused solar panels and air source heat pumps and to secure the appropriate restoration of the building in the interest of minimising harm to heritage significance and of preserving the character and appearance of the Evershot Conservation Area having regard to Policies ENV1, ENV4, ENV10, ENV12 and COM11 of the adopted West Dorset, Weymouth & Portland Local Plan 2015.

# **INFORMATIVE NOTES**

- 1. In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, as the local planning authority, Dorset Council takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals focused on solutions. Dorset Council worked with the applicant/agent in a positive and proactive manner by providing a pre-application advice service.
- 2. Further information relating to this decision may be viewed online through the application webpages accessible by entering the application details at <a href="https://planning.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/">https://planning.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/</a>.

# APPLICATION NUMBER: P/HOU/2021/04457

# APPLICATION SITE: 6 Culliford Road, Dorchester, DT1 2AT

# **PROPOSAL:** Erect rear flat roof extension

## **DECISION:** Grant, subject to conditions

## CONDITIONS:

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

2021/40/01 Location Plan, Existing Floor Plan and Elevations (received 02/11/2021) 2021/40/02 Block Plan, Proposed Floor Plan and Elevations (received 02/11/2021)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

## **INFORMATIVE NOTES**

## National Planning Policy Framework Statement

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF the council, as local planning authority, takes a positive approach to development proposals and is focused on providing sustainable development.

The council works with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by:

- offering a pre-application advice service, and
- as appropriate updating applications/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application and where possible suggesting solutions.

In this case:

- The application was acceptable as submitted and no further assistance was required.